

DEBTOR AND CREDITOR RELATIONSHIP

CHAPTER 115

SENATE BILL NO. 2302

(Senator Krebsbach)
(Representative Keiser)

MEDICAL LATE PAYMENT CHARGES

AN ACT to amend and reenact subsection 4 of section 13-01-14 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to late payment charges on medical or hospital bills.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 4 of section 13-01-14 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

4. ~~No~~ A creditor may not charge, receive, or collect a late payment charge on medical or hospital bills; ~~except that if no payment has been made on the account within the last ninety days, a~~ during the initial ninety days following services. A late payment charge may be imposed at a rate that does not exceed one percent per month, but the charge cannot exceed twenty-five dollars per month. This subsection does not apply in cases of financial hardship as certified by the creditor.

Approved April 14, 2003

Filed April 14, 2003

CHAPTER 116

SENATE BILL NO. 2128

(Finance and Taxation Committee)

(At the request of the Department of Financial Institutions)

CONSUMER FINANCE FEES

AN ACT to amend and reenact sections 13-03.1-05, 13-04.1-04, 13-05-04, subsection 1 of section 51-17-07, and section 51-17-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to consumer finance, money broker, collection agency, and sale of check license fees.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 13-03.1-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

13-03.1-05. Application and fees. Application for a license must be in writing, under oath, and in the form prescribed by the administrator. The application must give the location where the business is to be conducted and must contain such further information as the administrator may require, including the names and addresses of the partners, officers, directors, or trustees, and of such of the principal owners or members as will provide the basis for the investigations and findings contemplated by section 13-03.1-06. When making such application, the applicant shall include payment in the amount of ~~three~~ four hundred dollars, which is not subject to refund, as a fee for investigating the application, and ~~two~~ three hundred dollars for the annual license fee.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 13-04.1-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

13-04.1-04. Fee and bond to accompany application for money broker license. The application for license must be in writing, under oath, and in the form prescribed by the commissioner. The application must give the location where the business is to be conducted and must contain any further information the commissioner requires, including the names and addresses of the partners, officers, directors, trustees, and the principal owners or members, as will provide the basis for the investigation and findings contemplated by section 13-04.1-03. At the time of making such application, the applicant shall include payment in the sum of ~~three~~ four hundred dollars, which is not subject to refund, as a fee for investigating the application, and the sum of ~~two~~ three hundred dollars for the annual license fee, and provide a surety bond in the sum of twenty-five thousand dollars. Fees must be deposited in the financial institutions regulatory fund.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 13-05-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

13-05-04. Application requirements - Fee and bond to accompany application for collection agency license. The application for a collection agency license must be in writing, under oath, and in the form prescribed by the commissioner. The application must give the location where the business is to be conducted and must contain any further information the commissioner requires, including the names and addresses of the partners, officers, directors, trustees, and

the principal owners or members as will provide the basis for the investigation and findings contemplated by section 13-05-03. At the time of making such application, the applicant shall include payment in the sum of ~~three~~ four hundred dollars, which is not subject to refund, as a fee for investigating the application, and the sum of ~~two~~ three hundred dollars for the annual license fee, and provide a surety bond in the sum of twenty thousand dollars. In addition, the applicant shall pay a fifty dollar annual fee for each branch location. Fees must be deposited in the financial institutions regulatory fund.

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 51-17-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

1. An investigation fee of ~~three~~ four hundred dollars, which is not subject to refund, shall be in addition to the annual license fee. Fees must be deposited in the financial institutions regulatory fund.

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 51-17-10 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

51-17-10. Annual license fee. Each licensee shall pay to the commissioner annually on or before June fifteenth of each year a license fee of ~~two~~ three hundred dollars, which must be deposited in the financial institutions regulatory fund.

Approved March 12, 2003

Filed March 12, 2003

CHAPTER 117

SENATE BILL NO. 2158

(Finance and Taxation Committee)

(At the request of the Department of Financial Institutions)

CONSUMER FINANCE AND MONEY BROKER REGULATION

AN ACT to create and enact two new sections to chapter 13-03.1, two new sections to chapter 13-04.1, a new section to chapter 13-05, and two new sections to chapter 13-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to authority to remove officers and employees from consumer finance, money broker, and deferred presentment service provider licensees and responses to department of financial institutions information requests; to amend and reenact sections 13-03.1-06, 13-03.1-10, 13-03.1-18, 13-04.1-06, 13-04.1-07, 13-04.1-13, 13-05-06, 13-05-07, 13-05-10, 13-08-11, and 13-08-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to consumer finance company, money broker, and collection agency applicant qualifications, penalties for violating the consumer finance, money broker, collection agency, and deferred presentment service provider acts, and electronic record retention; and to provide a penalty.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 13-03.1-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

13-03.1-06. Investigation of application - Requirements for issuance of license - Denial of license - Public record.

1. Upon the filing of an application and the payment of the fees therefor the administrator shall investigate the facts concerning the application.
2. The administrator shall issue a license to operate a consumer finance loan business if the administrator finds:
 - a. That the financial responsibility, financial condition, business experience, character, and general fitness of the applicant are such as to must reasonably warrant the belief that the business will be operated conducted lawfully and fairly. In determining whether this qualification is met, and for the purpose of investigating compliance with this chapter, the administrator may review and consider the relevant business records and the capital adequacy of the applicant and the competence, experience, integrity, and financial ability of any person who is a member, partner, director, officer, or twenty-five percent or more shareholder of the applicant; and
 - b. That the applicant has assets of at least twenty-five thousand dollars for the operation of the business.

3. The administrator shall approve or deny every application for a license hereunder within sixty days from the filing thereof with the fee.
4. No application may be denied until the applicant has had a notice of a hearing on the application and an opportunity to be heard thereon. Whenever an application is denied, the administrator shall, within twenty days thereafter, prepare and keep on file in the administrator's office a written order of denial thereof. The order must contain its findings with respect thereto and the reasons supporting the denial, and the administrator shall send a copy thereof by registered mail to the applicant at the address set forth in the application within five days after the filing of the order. If the administrator finds the applicant is not qualified to be issued a license, the administrator shall return the license fee but may retain the investigation fee.
5. The administrator shall, upon request and payment of the annual license fee, deliver evidence of licensing under this chapter to the persons so previously licensed or authorized.

SECTION 2. A new section to chapter 13-03.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Suspension and removal of consumer finance officers or employees.

1. The commissioner of financial institutions may issue and serve upon a consumer finance officer or employee and upon the consumer finance company involved a complaint stating the basis for the commissioner's belief that the officer or employee is willfully engaging or has willfully engaged in any of the following conduct:
 - a. Violating a law, rule, order, or written agreement with the commissioner;
 - b. Engaging in harassment or abuse, the making of false or misleading representations, or engaging in unfair practices involving lending activity; or
 - c. Performing an act of commission or omission or practice which is a breach of trust or a breach of fiduciary duty.
2. The complaint must contain a notice of opportunity for hearing pursuant to chapter 28-32.
3. If a hearing is not requested within twenty days of the date the complaint is served upon the officer or employee, or if a hearing is held and the commissioner finds that the record so warrants, the commissioner may enter an order suspending or temporarily removing the employee or officer from office for a period not exceeding three years from the effective date of the suspension or temporary removal.
4. A contested or default suspension or temporary removal order is effective immediately upon service of the order on the officer or employee and upon the consumer finance company. A consent order is effective as agreed. An officer or employee suspended or temporarily removed from office pursuant to this section is not eligible, while under

suspension, for reinstatement to a position within a licensed consumer finance company.

5. When an officer or employee, or other person participating in the conduct of the affairs of a consumer finance company is charged with a felony in state or federal court which involves dishonesty or breach of trust, the commissioner may immediately suspend the person from office or prohibit the person from any further participation in the consumer finance affairs, or both. The order is effective immediately upon service of the order on the consumer finance company and the person charged and remains in effect until the criminal charge is finally disposed of or until modified by the commissioner. If a judgment of conviction, federal pretrial diversion, or similar state order or judgment is entered, the commissioner may order that the suspension or prohibition be made permanent. A finding of not guilty or other disposition of the charge does not preclude the commissioner from pursuing administrative or civil remedies.
6. Under this section, a person engages in conduct "willfully" if the person acted intentionally in the sense that the person was aware of what the person was doing.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 13-03.1-10 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

13-03.1-10. Records - Annual reports - Biennial report.

1. Every licensee shall maintain records in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and practices in a manner that will enable the administrator to determine whether the licensee is complying with this chapter. The recordkeeping system records of a licensee is sufficient if the licensee makes the required information reasonably available may be maintained electronically provided all records can be reproduced upon request of the department of financial institutions and within the required statutory timeframe outlined in this section. The records pertaining to any loan need not be preserved for more than two years after making the final entry relating to the loan, but in the case of a revolving loan account the two years is measured from the date of each entry.
2. On or before July thirty-first each year the parent company of each licensee shall file with the administrator a composite annual report in the form prescribed by the administrator relating to all loans made by its licensees. The administrator shall consult with comparable officials in other states for the purpose of making the kinds of information required in annual reports uniform among the states. The administrator may make and publish annually an analysis and recapitulation of such reports.
3. The administrator shall submit a biennial report to the governor and the secretary of state in accordance with section 54-06-04. In addition to any requirements established pursuant to section 54-06-04, the administrator's report must include a summary or abstract of the annual reports filed with the administrator.

SECTION 4. A new section to chapter 13-03.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Response to department requests. An applicant, licensee, or other person subject to the provisions of this chapter shall comply with requests for information, documents, or other requests from the department of financial institutions within the time specified in the request, which must be a minimum of ten days, or, if no time is specified, within thirty days of the mailing of the request by the department of financial institutions. If the request for information is in regard to a new application or renewal of an existing application and is not received within the time specified in the request, or within thirty days of the mailing of the request, the department may deny the application.

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 13-03.1-18 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

13-03.1-18. Penalty. A person who violates any of the provisions of this chapter or rules adopted ~~thereunder~~ hereunder is guilty of a class A ~~misdemeanor~~ C felony. The commissioner may impose a civil money penalty not to exceed five thousand dollars per violation upon a person or agency who willfully violates a law, rule, or order under this chapter. An interested party may appeal the assessment of a civil money penalty under the provisions of chapter 28-32 by filing a written notice of appeal within twenty days after service of the assessment of civil money penalties. A civil money penalty collected under this section must be paid to the state treasurer and deposited in the financial institutions regulatory fund. If a contract of loan in an amount exceeding one thousand dollars or any act in its making or collection violates the provisions of this chapter, the lender has no right to collect, receive, or retain any interest or charges whatsoever. If a contract of loan in an amount of one thousand dollars or less, or any willful act in its making or collection violates the provisions of this chapter, the lender has no right to collect, receive, or retain any interest or charges on that loan.

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 13-04.1-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

13-04.1-06. Powers of the department of financial institutions. Insofar as consistent with the provisions of law, the department of financial institutions has the power to:

1. Determine the qualifications of all applicants based on financial responsibility, financial condition, business experience, character, and general fitness, and issue license if approved which must reasonably warrant the belief that the applicant's business will be conducted lawfully and fairly. In determining whether this qualification is met, and for the purpose of investigating compliance with the chapter, the commissioner may review and consider the relevant business records and capital adequacy of the applicant and the competence, experience, integrity, and financial ability of a person who is a member, partner, director, officer, or twenty-five percent or more shareholder of the applicant.
2. Establish codes of ethical conduct for licensees.

SECTION 7. A new section to chapter 13-04.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Suspension and removal of money broker officers and employees.

1. The commissioner of financial institutions may issue and serve upon a money broker officer or employee and upon the licensee involved a complaint stating the basis for the commissioner's belief that the officer or employee is willfully engaging or has willfully engaged in any of the following conduct:
 - a. Violating a law, rule, order, or written agreement with the commissioner;
 - b. Engaging in harassment or abuse, the making of false or misleading representations, or engaging in unfair practices involving lending activity; or
 - c. Performing an act of commission or omission or practice which is a breach of trust or a breach of fiduciary duty.
2. The complaint must contain a notice of opportunity for hearing pursuant to chapter 28-32.
3. If a hearing is not requested within twenty days of the date the complaint is served upon the officer or employee, or if a hearing is held and the commissioner finds that the record so warrants, the commissioner may enter an order suspending or temporarily removing the employee or officer from office for a period not exceeding three years from the effective date of the suspension or temporary removal.
4. A contested or default suspension or temporary removal order is effective immediately upon service of the order on the officer or employee and upon the licensee. A consent order is effective as agreed. An officer or employee suspended or temporarily removed from office pursuant to this section is not eligible, while under suspension, for reinstatement to a position within a licensed money broker.
5. When an officer or employee, or other person participating in the conduct of the affairs of a licensee is charged with a felony in state or federal court which involves dishonesty or breach of trust, the commissioner may immediately suspend the person from office or prohibit the person from further participation in the affairs of the money broker, or both. The order is effective immediately upon service of the order on the licensee and the person charged and remains in effect until the criminal charge is finally disposed of or until modified by the commissioner. If a judgment of conviction, federal pretrial diversion, or similar state order or judgment is entered, the commissioner may order that the suspension or prohibition be made permanent. A finding of not guilty or other disposition of the charge does not preclude the commissioner from pursuing administrative or civil remedies.
6. Under this section, a person engages in conduct "willfully" if the person acted intentionally in the sense that the person was aware of what the person was doing.

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 13-04.1-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

13-04.1-07. Manner in which records to be kept. Every money broker licensed under this chapter shall keep a record of all sums collected by them and of all loans and leases completed as a result of their efforts for a period of six years from the date of last entry thereon. The records of a licensee may be maintained electronically provided they can be reproduced upon request by the department of financial institutions and within the required statutory time period provided in this section.

SECTION 9. A new section to chapter 13-04.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Response to department requests. An applicant, licensee, or other person subject to the provisions of this chapter shall comply with requests for information, documents, or other requests from the department of financial institutions within the time specified in the request, which must be a minimum of ten days, or, if no time is specified, within thirty days of the mailing of the request by the department of financial institutions. If the request for information is in regard to a new application or renewal of an existing application and is not received within the time specified in the request, or within thirty days of the mailing of the request, the department may deny the application.

SECTION 10. AMENDMENT. Section 13-04.1-13 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

13-04.1-13. Penalty. Any person violating any of the provisions of this chapter or any rule or order of the department of financial institutions made pursuant to the provisions of this chapter or who engages in any act, practice, or transaction declared by any provision of this chapter to be unlawful is guilty of a class C felony. The commissioner may impose a civil money penalty not to exceed five thousand dollars per violation upon a person or agency who willfully violates a law, rule, or order under this chapter. An interested party may appeal the assessment of a civil money penalty under the provisions of chapter 28-32 by filing a written notice of appeal within twenty days after service of the assessment of civil money penalties. A civil money penalty collected under this section must be paid to the state treasurer and deposited in the financial institutions regulatory fund.

SECTION 11. AMENDMENT. Section 13-05-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

13-05-06. Powers of the department of financial institutions. Insofar as consistent with other provisions of law, the department of financial institutions has the power to:

1. Determine the qualifications of all applicants based on financial responsibility, financial condition, business experience, character, and general fitness and issue licenses if approved which must reasonably warrant the belief that the applicant's business will be conducted lawfully and fairly. In determining whether this qualification is met, and for the purpose of investigating compliance with this chapter, the commissioner may review and consider the relevant business records and capital adequacy of the applicant and the competence, experience, integrity, and financial ability of a person who is a member, partner, director, officer, or twenty-five percent or more shareholder of the applicant.

2. Conduct investigations and make an examination of any licensee or licensee's place of business, including all records of such business, and to subpoena witnesses any time they have reason to believe such is necessary. The licensee shall pay an examination or visitation fee and must be charged by the department of financial institutions at an hourly rate to be set by the commissioner, sufficient to cover all reasonable expenses of the department associated with the examination or visitation provided for by this section. Fees must be paid to the state treasurer and deposited in the financial institutions regulatory fund.
3. Establish codes of ethical conduct for licensees.
4. Adopt any and all rules and regulations necessary to carry out the purpose of this chapter.
5. Issue and serve upon any person or licensed collection agency, an order to cease and desist to take corrective action when the department has reason to believe the person or agency is violating, has violated, or is about to violate the provisions of this chapter. An interested party may appeal issuance of a cease and desist order under the provisions of chapter 28-32 by filing written notice of appeal within twenty days after service of the order.
6. ~~Impose civil money penalties against persons or agencies willfully violating an order to cease and desist in an amount not to exceed five hundred dollars for each violation. An interested party may appeal the assessment of a civil money penalty under the provisions of chapter 28-32 by filing written notice of appeal within twenty days after service of the assessment of civil money penalties. Any civil money penalties collected under this section must be paid to the state treasurer and deposited in the financial institutions regulatory fund.~~

SECTION 12. AMENDMENT. Section 13-05-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

13-05-07. Manner in which records and funds to be kept by collection agency. Every collection agency licensed under this chapter shall keep a record of all sums collected by it and of all disbursements made by it for a period of six years from the date of last entry thereon. The records of a licensee may be maintained electronically provided they can be reproduced upon request of the department of financial institutions and within the required statutory time period provided in this section. No collection agency, or any employees thereof, may intentionally make any false entry in any such collection agency record or intentionally mutilate, destroy, or otherwise dispose of any such record within the time limit provided in this section. No licensee under this chapter may commingle the money of collection agency customers with other than collection funds and shall maintain a separate bank account for such customer's funds and shall keep such funds in the bank account until disbursed to the customer.

SECTION 13. A new section to chapter 13-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Response to department requests. An applicant, licensee, or other person subject to the provisions of this chapter shall comply with requests for information, documents, or other requests from the department of financial institutions within the time specified in the request, which must be a minimum of ten days, or, if no time is

specified, within thirty days of the mailing of the request by the department of financial institutions. If the request for information is in regard to a new application or renewal of an existing application and is not received within the time specified in the request, or within thirty days of the mailing of the request, the department may deny the application.

SECTION 14. AMENDMENT. Section 13-05-10 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

13-05-10. Penalty. Any person violating any of the provisions of this chapter is guilty of a class A ~~misdemeanor~~ C felony. The commissioner may impose a civil money penalty not to exceed five thousand dollars per violation upon a person or agency who willfully violates a law, rule, or order under this chapter. An interested party may appeal the assessment of a civil money penalty under the provisions of chapter 28-32 by filing a written notice of appeal within twenty days after service of the assessment of civil money penalties. A civil money penalty collected under this section must be paid to the state treasurer and deposited in the financial institutions regulatory fund.

SECTION 15. AMENDMENT. Section 13-08-11 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

13-08-11. Retention of records. Each licensee shall keep and use in the licensee's business any books, accounts, and records the commissioner may require to carry into effect the provisions of this chapter and the rules issued under this chapter. Every licensee shall preserve required books, accounts, and records for at least six years. The records of a licensee may be maintained electronically provided they can be reproduced upon request by the department of financial institutions and within the required statutory time period provided in this section.

SECTION 16. A new section to chapter 13-08 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Response to department requests. An applicant, licensee, or other person subject to the provisions of this chapter shall comply with requests for information, documents, or other requests from the department of financial institutions within the time specified in the request, which must be a minimum of ten days, or, if no time is specified, within thirty days of the mailing of the request by the department of financial institutions. If the request for information is in regard to a new application or renewal of an existing application and is not received within the time specified in the request, or within thirty days of the mailing of the request, the department may deny the application.

SECTION 17. A new section to chapter 13-08 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Suspension and removal of deferred presentment service provider officers and employees.

1. The commissioner of financial institutions may issue and serve upon a deferred presentment service provider officer or employee and upon the licensee involved a complaint stating the basis for the commissioner's belief that the officer or employee is willfully engaging or has willfully engaged in any of the following conduct:

- a. Violating a law, rule, order, or written agreement with the commissioner;
 - b. Engaging in harassment or abuse, the making of false or misleading representations, or engaging in unfair practices involving lending activity; or
 - c. Performing an act of commission or omission or practice, which is a breach of trust or a breach of fiduciary duty.
2. The complaint must contain a notice of opportunity for hearing pursuant to chapter 28-32.
3. If a hearing is not requested within twenty days of the date the complaint is served upon the officer or employee, or if a hearing is held and the commissioner finds that the record so warrants, the commissioner may enter an order suspending or temporarily removing the employee or officer from office for a period not exceeding three years from the effective date of the suspension or temporary removal.
4. A contested or default suspension or temporary removal order is effective immediately upon service of the order on the officer or employee and upon the licensee. A consent order is effective as agreed. An officer or employee suspended or temporarily removed from office pursuant to this section is not eligible, while under suspension, for reinstatement to a position within a licensed deferred presentment service provider.
5. When an officer or employee, or other person participating in the conduct of the affairs of a licensee is charged with a felony in state or federal court which involves dishonesty or breach of trust, the commissioner may immediately suspend the person from office or prohibit the person from further participation in the deferred presentment service provider affairs, or both. The order is effective immediately upon service of the order on the licensee and the person charged and remains in effect until the criminal charge is finally disposed of or until modified by the commissioner. If a judgment of conviction, federal pretrial diversion, or similar state order or judgment is entered, the commissioner may order that the suspension or prohibition be made permanent. A finding of not guilty or other disposition of the charge does not preclude the commissioner from pursuing administrative or civil remedies.
6. Under this section, a person engages in conduct "willfully" if the person acted intentionally in the sense that the person was aware of what the person was doing.

SECTION 18. AMENDMENT. Section 13-08-15 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

13-08-15. Violations - Cease and desist orders - Penalties. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, any person who willfully provides deferred presentment services without a license is guilty of a class C felony and any person who violates any other provisions of this chapter or any rule adopted to implement this chapter is guilty of an infraction. If the commissioner finds, whether without a hearing or after a hearing if a hearing is requested within twenty days of notice of an

action by the commissioner under this section, that a person violated this chapter or any rule adopted to implement this chapter, the commissioner may do any one or more of the following:

1. Order the person to cease and desist violating this chapter or the rule.
2. Require the refund of any fees collected by the person in violation of this chapter.
3. Impose a civil penalty not to exceed ~~one thousand dollars per transaction for violation of a cease and desist order issued under this chapter or for violation of this chapter~~ five thousand dollars per violation upon a person or agency who willfully violates a law, rule, or order under this chapter. An interested party may appeal the assessment of a civil money penalty under the provisions of chapter 28-32 by filing a written notice of appeal within twenty days after service of the assessment of civil money penalties. A civil money penalty collected under this section must be paid to the state treasurer and deposited in the financial institutions regulatory fund.

Approved March 14, 2003

Filed March 17, 2003

CHAPTER 118

HOUSE BILL NO. 1184

(Industry, Business and Labor Committee)

(At the request of the Department of Financial Institutions)

CONSUMER FINANCE, COLLECTION AGENCY, AND MONEY BROKER LICENSING

AN ACT to create and enact a new section to chapter 13-03.1 and a new section to chapter 13-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to consumer finance license renewals and subpoena powers for collection agency information; and to amend and reenact sections 13-04.1-05 and 13-05-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to money broker and collection agency license renewals and renewal late fees.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 13-03.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Expiration and renewal of license. All licenses required herein expire on June thirtieth of each year and may be renewed. Renewals are effective the succeeding July first. Applications for renewal must be submitted thirty days before the expiration of the license and must be accompanied by the required annual fees. The form and content of renewal applications must be determined by the department of financial institutions and a renewal application may be denied upon the same grounds as would justify the denial of an initial application. When a licensee has been delinquent in renewing the licensee's license, the department may charge an additional fee of fifty dollars for the renewal of the license. A consumer finance license is not transferable. If the commissioner determines that an ownership change has occurred in a sole proprietorship, partnership, limited liability partnership, corporation, or limited liability corporation that was previously granted a consumer finance license, the commissioner may require a new application from the purchaser. The application must be filed within forty-five days from the date change of ownership is consummated. The department shall act on the application within sixty days from the date the application is received but may extend the review period for good cause. The consumer finance license granted to the previous owner continues in effect to the new purchaser until the application is either granted or denied.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 13-04.1-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

13-04.1-05. Expiration and renewal of license. All licenses required herein expire on June thirtieth of each year and may be renewed. Renewals are effective the succeeding July first. Applications for renewal must be submitted ~~on or before~~ thirty days before the expiration of the license and must be accompanied by the required annual fees. The form and content of renewal applications must be determined by the department of financial institutions, and a renewal application may be denied upon the same grounds as would justify denial of an initial application. When a licensee has been delinquent in renewing the licensee's license, the department may charge an additional fee of ~~five~~ fifty dollars

for the renewal of such license. A money broker license is not transferable. If the commissioner determines that an ownership change has occurred in a sole proprietorship, partnership, limited liability partnership, corporation, or limited liability corporation that was previously granted a money broker license, the commissioner may require a new application from the purchaser. The application must be filed within forty-five days from the date change of ownership is consummated. The department shall act on the application within sixty days from the date the application is received but may extend the review period for good cause. The money broker license granted to the previous owner continues in effect to the new purchaser until the application is either granted or denied.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 13-05-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

13-05-05. Expiration and renewal of license. All licenses required herein expire on June thirtieth of each year and ~~must~~ may be renewed ~~on the succeeding first day of July upon payment of required annual fees.~~ The department of financial institutions may charge an additional fee of five dollars for the renewal of a license after June thirtieth. Applications for renewal must be submitted thirty days before the expiration of the license and must be accompanied by the required annual fees. The form and content of renewal applications must be determined by the department of financial institutions and a renewal application may be denied upon the same grounds as would justify denial of an initial application. When a licensee has been delinquent in renewing the licensee's license, the department may charge an additional fee of fifty dollars for the renewal of the license. A collection agency license is not transferable. If the commissioner determines that an ownership change has occurred in a sole proprietorship, partnership, limited liability partnership, corporation, or limited liability corporation that was previously granted a collection agency license, the commissioner may require a new application from the purchaser. The application must be filed within forty-five days from the date change of ownership is consummated. The department shall act on the application within sixty days from the date the application is received but may extend the review period for good cause. The collection agency license granted to the previous owner continues in effect to the new purchaser until the application is either granted or denied.

SECTION 4. A new section to chapter 13-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Investigations and subpoenas.

1. The department of financial institutions may:
 - a. Make such public or private investigation within or outside this state as it deems necessary to determine whether a person has violated or is about to violate a provision of this chapter or a rule or order under this chapter, or to aid in the enforcement of this chapter or in the adopting of rules and forms under this chapter.
 - b. Require or permit a person to file a statement in writing, under oath or otherwise as the department determines, as to all the facts and circumstances concerning the matter to be investigated.
 - c. Publish information concerning a violation of this chapter or a rule or order under this chapter.

2. For the purpose of an investigation or proceeding under this chapter, the department of financial institutions may administer oaths and affirmations, subpoena witnesses, compel their attendance, take evidence, and require the production of books, papers, correspondence, memoranda, agreements, or other documents or records which the department deems relevant or material to the inquiry.
3. In case of contumacy by, or refusal to obey a subpoena issued to, a person, the district court, upon application by the department of financial institutions, may issue to the person an order requiring the person to appear before the department, there to produce documentary evidence if so ordered or to give evidence touching the matter under investigation or in question. Failure to obey the order of the court may be punished by the court as a contempt of court.
4. A person is not excused from attending and testifying or from producing a document or record before the department of financial institutions, or in obedience of the subpoena of the department or in a proceeding instituted by the department, on the grounds that the testimony or evidence, documentary or otherwise, required of the person may tend to incriminate the person or subject the person to a penalty or forfeiture; but an individual may not be prosecuted or subjected to a penalty or forfeiture for or on account of a transaction, matter, or thing concerning which the person is compelled, after claiming the privilege against self-incrimination, to testify or produce evidence, documentary or otherwise, except that the individual testifying is not exempt from prosecution and punishment for perjury or contempt committed in testifying.

Approved March 17, 2003
Filed March 17, 2003